
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.   

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
10 January 2022 

Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a special meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL CABINET to be held on Tuesday 18 January 2022 at 5.00 pm in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Service Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 

2.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Cabinet and to receive any 
petitions. 
 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on the Agenda. 
 

4.   ITEMS RELATING TO THE BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL  
 

 To consider the following items:- 
 

(a)    Budget Proposals and Medium Term Financial Forecasts 2022/23 
(Forward Plan Reference FP1086) (Pages 3 - 4) 

 To consider the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Public Document Pack



Public Document Pack from its meeting on 6 January 2022 on the 
budget proposals for 2022/23 (Minutes from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to follow).  
 

(b)    Local Plan - Additional Sites and Modifications to the Plan (Forward 
Plan Reference FP1083) (Pages 5 - 8) 

 Recommendations from the meeting of the Cabinet Planning and 
Parking Panel on 13 January 2022 on additional sites and further 
modifications to the Local Plan.  
 
Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel Document Link - Thursday 13 
January 2022  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors T.Kingsbury (Chairman) 

D.Bell (Vice-Chairman) 
S.Boulton 
 

N.Pace 
B.Sarson 
F.Thomson 
 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=1328&Ver=4
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=1328&Ver=4
mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


Part I 
Item No: 
Main authors: Richard Baker  
Executive Member: Cllr. Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SPECIAL CABINET – 18 JANUARY 2021 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF RESOURCES 
 
Budget Proposals and Medium-Term Forecasts 2022/23 
 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to report to Cabinet the recommendations from the overview 

and Scrutiny Committee in relation to the budget proposals, and for Cabinet to agree 
the changes to the budget papers.  

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. That Cabinet note changes to the draft budget papers for 2022/23, and consider the 

recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 

2.2. That Cabinet recommend the budget proposals to Full Council. 
 
3. Explanation 

 
3.1. The budget proposals were presented to Cabinet on 4 January 2022. A link to the budget 

papers presented is included below: 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Agenda item - Budget Proposals and Medium Term 
Financial Forecasts 2022/23 (Forward Plan Reference FP1086) (welhat.gov.uk) 
 

3.2. At the same meeting, Cabinet considered the fees and charges for the Estate 
Management Scheme, and recommendations from the Estates Management Scheme 
Member Group were approved. The amendments included slight changes to the 
proposed fees and charges for the scheme. These fees will be adjusted accordingly for 
the pack presented to Full Council.  
 

3.3. Overview and Scrutiny set a Task and Finish Group for the budget, which met monthly 
from October 2021 through to January 2022. A number of areas were discussed. This 
group fed back recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6 January 
2022. The following recommendations were made by the Task and Finish group: 

 
That the Committee: 

 note the work of the Panel in scrutinising the budget proposals; 

 note that they found the budget proposals to be financially sound; and,  

 recommend that these observations should be shared with the Cabinet. 
 

3.4. These were agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee as recommendations to 
Cabinet. Based on the recommendations made, there are no recommended 
amendments to the budget from Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Cabinet to 
consider. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4a

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=14974#mgDocuments
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=14974#mgDocuments


4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1. Financial implications are contained in the budget report to Cabinet on 4 January 2022. 
 
5. Link to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1. The Council’s budget proposals directly support all of the Council’s Corporate Priorities. 
 
6. Legal Implication(s) 

 
6.1. Legal implications are contained in the budget report to Cabinet on 4 January 2022. 
 
7. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 
 
7.1. There are no implications for security and terrorism arising from this report.   
 
8. Procurement Implication(s) 
 
8.1. There are no direct procurement implications arising from this report.  

 
9. Climate Change Implication(s) 
 
9.1. The budget includes retention of the balance of the Climate Change earmarked reserve 

which will help the Council to continue to deliver strategic climate change actions.  
 

10.  Human Resources Implication(s) 
 
10.1. There are no direct Human Resources arising from this report. Any human resources 

implications associated with specific budget proposals will be considered as part of the 
implementation of those proposals.  

 
11. Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 
 
11.1. A press release and TeamTalk Budget special have been published after the draft budget 

report was presented to Cabinet.   
 

12. Risk Management Implications 
 
12.1. Risk management implications are contained in the budget report to Cabinet on 4 

January 2022. 
 
13. Equality and Diversity 
 
13.1. Any equality and diversity implications associated with specific budget proposals will be 

considered as part of the implementation of those proposals, and equalities assessments 
undertaken as appropriate.  
 

 
Name of author Richard Baker  
Title Head of Resources 
Date 9 January 2022 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SPECIAL CABINET – 18 JANUARY 2022 

 
Recommendation from the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel on 13 January 
2022:- 
 

39. LOCAL PLAN - ADDITIONAL SITES AND MODIFICATIONS TO THE PLAN 
 
Report of the Head of Planning on the Local Plan – additional sites and modifications 
to the Plan. Members received a presentation which set out the background to the 
Local Plan including the key stages and consultation; Hearings Sessions; the content 
of the submitted plan the Development Strategy; and, the key reports and letters 
received from the Inspector.  The Inspector had advised that the Local Plan should 
make provision for 15,200 homes.  The Inspector had found that allocation totalling 
8,557 dwellings to be either sound or could be found sound.   An additional 1,641 
dwellings were required to be allocated from sites considered by the Inspector.  The 
presentation set out options to meet the housing need while meeting the Inspectors 
tests. 
 

Recommendation 1: 
 

Consider the results of the Site Selection Addendum and the Sustainability Appraisal 
Addendum and the merits and disadvantages of the different options. 
 

Recommendation 2: 
 

That Members accept the Officers recommendation set out in paragraph 4.30 of the 
report and recommend to Cabinet and Full Council Option D as set out in Appendix 
D to this report for submission to the examination along with the relevant supporting 
information. 
 

Recommendation 3: 
 

That Members recommend to Cabinet and Full Council that public consultation take 
place on Main Modifications to the Local Plan once the Inspector has confirmed the 
content of the Main Modifications required to make the Plan sound. 

 

Members sought clarification on the inspector’s position on the number of dwellings 
proposed at the Symondshyde site.  Officers stated that the site does not need to be 
selected and more sustainable sites had to be selected first. Officers stated that the 
site had revised changes which could not change the funds allocated for 
infrastructure such as transport. Officers concluded that not the complete number of 
dwellings needed to be built in the Plan period, but the site would need the full 
amount to be deemed sustainable.  
 

Members asked about infrastructure at the Symondshyde site. Officers stated that 
critical mass was examined to find what would be needed for school, shops and 
public transport provisions. As the site would be near North-West Hatfield and the 
two sites are owned by the same landowner, the site promoter would make a 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4b



 
 
 

relationship between the sites. Officers stated the inspector was happy with the 
viability of public transport infrastructure. 
 

Members expressed concerns over the inclusion of Symondshyde into the Plan. 
Members felt that the transport and sustainability was inadequate, highlighting that 
the bus service would not sufficient, the housing would be expensive therefore most 
homeowners would have cars which would increase stresses on the roads. Members 
felt it would be a blight on the greenbelt landscape.  
 

Members stated that they could not support options A – D in the report as they 
included Symonshyde and other sites which were not sustainable. Members felt that 
Inspectors OAN number of 15 200 was too high. Members stated that the metrics to 
calculate the target were not as certain as before as growth had been stagnant and 
inward migration had decreased which meant that the housing need would decrease.  
 

Members had heard several concerns from Welwyn Hatfield residents and those 
outside of the borough over the loss of greenbelt proposed in this Local Plan. 
Members wanted the Local Plan to work for local people. Members stated that 
residents’ concerns had been ignored, other local authorities were also building 
which would add stress to infrastructure and resources within the borough.  
 

Members were aware that any Plan suggested, land from the greenbelt would be lost 
but felt it would be best to lessen the impacts. Members stated the greenbelt in the 
borough was crucial for many during the pandemic lockdowns, therefore as much of 
the greenbelt should be protected. Members stated that the greenbelt was created to 
prevent urban sprawl. Members highlighted that density of developments would need 
to be reconsidered to keep the greenbelt protected.  
 

Members felt there was limited options, the officers’ recommendations would not be 
welcomed by the residents of the borough, and if an agreement was not made then 
the Council would be subject to Planning by appeal which would be a costly process. 
Members stated that appeals would still happen even if the Officer recommendations 
were accepted.  
 

Members expressed that the Plan started in 2009 was focussed on Welwyn Garden 
City and Hatfield which was wrong. Members felt perhaps it was too late to reduce 
the OAN. Members felt the inspector was dictating the Plan as only he could approve 
or remove site allocations.  
 

Members proposed a motion to reject the officers’ recommendations and revert to 
the Plan discussed in November 2020 that had 13 377 homes for the borough.  
 

In response to the Motion, Officers advised that the Inspector had found an overall 
figure of 15,200 new homes to be sound and had made it clear that unless the 
Council added in more sites to the Local Plan to achieve the Full Objectively 
Assessed Housing Need the Plan will be found unsound. Should the Inspector find 
the Plan unsound (e.g., because it did not make provision for what he regarded as 
the appropriate level of new housing development and / or because he did not 
regard the sites put forward to meet the need for new housing to be appropriate) the 
Council would be unable to adopt the Plan. In that eventuality, the Council would not 
have an up-to-date Plan as the current adopted District Plan dates from 2005 and 
therefore largely out-of-date, particularly in relation to policies relating to new 
residential development. If the emerging plan were withdrawn or found unsound the 
Council would have to largely rely on policies in the NPPF for decision making. 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

Because the Council no longer had a five-year land supply and had failed the 
Housing Delivery Test, the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
already applies. In the absence of an up-to-date local plan, policies that sought to 
protect areas from residential development would carry less weight and the Council 
would be more likely to lose decisions on appeal. There would be a risk that the 
Council’s vulnerability to opportunistic speculative planning applications and 
associated appeals would increase significantly by not having an up-to-date Local 
Plan. By virtue of its date of submission for examination the emerging Local Plan 
was being judged against the version of national planning policy (the NPPF) which 
was published in 2012 rather than against more recent versions. The housing 
requirement was lower than it would be under more recent Government policy. If the 
emerging plan was not adopted the housing figure of 760 per annum would be 
replaced by a higher figure of 875 per annum generated by the “standard 
methodology”. Officers stated they have a duty to alert members of the risks 
associated with departing from the principles set out by the Inspector in his letter 
dated June 2021. 
 

Members sought clarification on the legal process of the recommendation from 
CPPP to Cabinet. The Executive Member stated that Cabinet makes 
recommendation for Council to decide.  
 

Members sought clarification whether Option D from the report could be accepted 
and at the 5-year review to reduce the number of dwellings and remove sites. 
Officers stated that they had investigated that, however once land had been 
removed from the greenbelt it would be hard to put it back in. Members agreed in 
principle with the idea however once the land had been designated building land it 
would then be built upon.  
 

Members stated they could not support the motion as the distribution of housing was 
incorrect however they would like to see a lower OAN. Members raised concerns 
regarding to the Inspectors comments and the Plan potentially being found unsound 
which would be a waste of time and money. 
 

Members sought greater detail on the proposed motion as they had not seen the 
Plan mentioned. 
 

Members stated that they had a difficult decision to make as the Inspectors OAN of 
15 200 was too high, the Council Advisors, Turleys, figure of 14 000 was high and 
local resident would not support such large developments in the borough due to the 
quantity of correspondence regarding the Local Plan.  
 

 RESOLVED: 
(Unanimous in Favour) 

 

Panel members considered the results of the Site Selection Addendum and 
the Sustainability Appraisal Addendum and the merits and disadvantages of 
the different options 

 

RESOLVED: 
(Unanimous against) 

 

Panel Members accept the Officers recommendation set out in paragraph 4. 

30 of the report and recommend to Cabinet and Full Council Option D as set 

out in Appendix D to this report for submission to the examination along with 

the relevant supporting information. 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

A motion was proposed and seconded by Councillors S. Thusu and D. 

Richardson and,  
 

 RESOLVED: 

 (10 in Favour, 2 against, 1 abstention) 
 

That Members recommend to Cabinet and Full Council the proposed dwelling 
numbers agreed and recommended by the Cabinet Planning and Parking 
Panel on 17 November 2020, specifically that a strategy is put forward for 
13,277 dwellings. 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	4a Budget Proposals and Medium Term Financial Forecasts 2022/23 (Forward Plan Reference FP1086)
	4b Local Plan - Additional Sites and Modifications to the Plan (Forward Plan Reference FP1083)

